
Internal

   Commission on Disability 
AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, July 12, 2023   5:00 PM 
Location: 1901 Hearst Avenue, Berkeley, CA 94709 

(North Berkeley Senior Center) 

A. PRELIMINARY BUSINESS

1) Call to Order by Acting Chair Walsh
2) Land Acknowledgement: The City of Berkeley

recognizes that the community we live in was built on
the territory of xučyun (Huchiun (Hooch-yoon)), the
ancestral and unceded land of the Chochenyo (Cho-
chen-yo)-speaking Ohlone (Oh-low-nee) people, the
ancestors and descendants of the sovereign Verona
Band of Alameda County. This land was and
continues to be of great importance to all of the
Ohlone Tribes and descendants of the Verona Band.
As we begin our meeting tonight, we acknowledge
and honor the original inhabitants of Berkeley, the
documented 5,000-year history of a vibrant

1



Internal

community at the West Berkeley Shellmound, and 
the Ohlone people who continue to reside in the East 
Bay.  We recognize that Berkeley’s residents have 
and continue to benefit from the use and occupation 
of this unceded stolen land since the City of 
Berkeley’s incorporation in 1878. As stewards of the 
laws regulating the City of Berkeley, it is not only vital 
that we recognize the history of this land, but also 
recognize that the Ohlone people are present 
members of Berkeley and other East Bay 
communities today. The City of Berkeley will 
continue to build relationships with the Lisjan Tribe 
and to create meaningful actions that uphold the 
intention of this land acknowledgement. 

3) Roll Call by Secretary
4) Public Comment on Items Not on the Agenda.

(Up to 3 minutes per speaker)
5) Approval of Draft Minutes for June 7, 2023*

6) Approval and Order of Agenda*

7) Staff updates re: (a) Commissioner training video
on City website, (b) more screen-reader-friendly
version of Manual coming, (c) new RFP process
re Measure E contract, and (d) ADA Transition
Plan due to Caltrans in October.

B. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS

2



Internal

The public may speak about any agenda item, and 
members of the public will have an opportunity to 
speak prior to any voting regarding an agenda item. 
(Comments may be limited to 3 minutes per speaker) 

1. Nominations and vote for Chair (Action)

2. Should the Berkeley Commission on Disability
improve meeting accessibility by changing the 
meeting time, monthly schedule, and meeting 
location to the North Berkeley Senior (NBSC)? 
(Action) 

3. Continue to Review the previous year’s
Commission on Disability work Plan.  Discuss
and determine next steps for the final draft of the
COD work plan for 2023-2024.  *Include work plan
in packet

4. Open discussion on creating an effective,
representative Commission on Disability with
logistical practices and communication policies
that comply with both the ADA and the Brown
Act.  A. Update from the secretary about the
projects that they are working on. (Discussion)

3



Internal

5. ADA Grievance complaints sent in to ADA
Programs Coordinator.  What has been resolved
and what are still in process of being resolved.*

C. Announcements
1. Acknowledgement of the July 26, 2023

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 33rd

Anniversary #Thanks to the ADA!

D. ADJOURNMENT:

Agenda Posted: (1) on the bulletin board at Old City 
Hall at 2134 MLK Jr. Way, (2) at 1901 Hearst Avenue, 
Berkeley, CA 94709 (North Berkeley Senior Center), 
and (3) on the City of Berkeley website. 

* Indicates written material included in packet.
**  Indicates material to be delivered at meeting.
*** Indicates material previously mailed.
A complete agenda packet is available for public
review on the web at:
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/C
ommissio
ns__Commission_on_Disability_Homepage.aspx

4

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Commission_on_Disability_Homepage.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Commission_on_Disability_Homepage.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Commission_on_Disability_Homepage.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Commission_on_Disability_Homepage.aspx


Internal

Available also at the main library, and Public Works, 

Engineering Division, 1947 Center Street, 4th Floor.  

ADA Disclaimer 
 “This meeting is being held in a wheelchair 
accessible location. To request a disability-related 
accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, 
including auxiliary aids or services, or alternative 
formats, please contact the Disability Services 
specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at 
least 72 hours before the meeting commences. 
Please refrain from wearing scented products to 
this meeting.  

Communications Disclaimer  
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or 
committees are public record and will become part of 
the City’s electronic records, which are accessible 
through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail 
addresses, names, addresses, and other contact 
information are not required, but if included in any 
communication to a City board, commission or 
committee, will become part of the public record. If 
you do not want your e-mail address or any other 
contact information to be made public, you may 
deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in 

5



Internal

person to the secretary of the relevant board, 
commission or committee.  
If you do not want your contact information included 
in the public record, please do not include that 
information in your communication.  

Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, 
commission or committee for further information.  

Commission Secretary: Thomas Gregory, ADA 
Program Coordinator, 1947 Center St., 4th Floor, 
Berkeley, CA, 94704, Telephone (510) 981-6418, Fax: 
(510) 981-7060 TDD: (510) 981-6347.
Email: tgregory@cityofberkeley.info
Email: ada@cityofberkeley.info

6



Internal 
Internal 

DRAFT Minutes re 6/7/23 CoD 
meeting…the minutes 
below are printed in bold 
italics…all other language 
is the meeting’s agenda as 
originally published with 
one exception: the 
Commissioners’ surnames 
that originally appeared 
next to remote sites’ 
addresses have been 
replaced with X and Y. 

Commission on Disability 
AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, June 7, 2023 6:00 PM 
In-Person Location: 1326 Allston Way, Berkeley, CA 

94702 (Willow Room at the Corporation Yard) 

Commissioner X participating from: 1806 Addison St., 
Berkeley, CA 94703 

7



Internal 
Internal 

Commissioner Y participating from: 1888 Berkeley 
Way, Berkeley, CA 94703 

A. PRELIMINARY BUSINESS

1) Call to Order by Acting Chair Walsh

Acting Chair Walsh was absent.  Commissioner 
Lewkowicz called the meeting to order at 6:03pm. 

2) Land Acknowledgement Statement: The City of
Berkeley recognizes that the community we live in
was built on the territory of xučyun (Huchiun (Hooch- 
yoon)), the ancestral and unceded land of the
Chochenyo (Cho-chen-yo)-speaking Ohlone (Oh-

8



Internal 
Internal 

low-nee) people, the ancestors and descendants of 
the sovereign Verona Band of Alameda County. This 
land was and continues to be of great importance to 
all of the Ohlone Tribes and descendants of the 
Verona Band. As we begin our meeting tonight, we 
acknowledge and honor the original inhabitants of 
Berkeley, the documented 5,000-year history of a 
vibrant community at the West Berkeley Shellmound, 
and the Ohlone people who continue to reside in the 
East Bay. We recognize that Berkeley’s residents 
have and continue to benefit from the use and 
occupation of this unceded stolen land since the City 
of Berkeley’s incorporation in 1878. As stewards of 
the laws regulating the City of Berkeley, it is not only 
vital that we recognize the history of this land, but 
also recognize that the Ohlone people are present 
members of Berkeley and other East Bay 
communities today. The City of Berkeley will 
continue to build relationships with the Lisjan Tribe 
and to create meaningful actions that uphold the 
intention of this land acknowledgement. 

3) Roll Call by Secretary

Commissioners present: Rena Fischer, Kathi Pugh, 
Mina Sun, and Bonnie Lewkowicz. 

Commissioners absent: Helen Walsh. 

Public members present: H.W. 

Staff present: Thomas Gregory, Guillermo Campos, 

9



Internal 
Internal 

and Andrew Brozyna (the latter for the first hour only). 

Because CoD has no Chair and because the Acting 
Chair (and Vice-Chair) was absent, the following vote 
was held: 

Motion: “that Kathi serve as presiding Commissioner 
for tonight’s meeting.” 
Made by: Commissioner Lewkowicz. 
Seconded by: Commissioner Sun. 
Ayes: unanimous. 
Nays: none. 
Motion passes. 

A short while later, the following vote was held: 

Motion: “that Bonnie replace Kathi as tonight’s 
presiding Commissioner.” 
Made by: Commissioner Lewkowicz. 
Seconded by: Commissioner Pugh. 
Ayes: unanimous. 
Nays: none. 
Motion passes. 

4) Public Comment on Items Not on the Agenda.
(Up to 3 minutes per speaker)

H.W., the one member of the public present, made a
comment.

5) Approval of Draft Minutes for February 1, 2023*

10



Internal 
Internal 

The following vote was made: 

Motion: “to approve the draft minutes for February.” 
Made by: unknown…the secretary, who is new to the 
role, erred by not capturing this info. 
Seconded by: unknown…the secretary failed to 
capture this info. 
Ayes: none. 
Nays: none. 
Abstentions: unanimous. 
Motion fails. 

The reason that all participating Commissioners 
abstained from voting is that they are all brand new to 
the CoD and were not present for the February meeting 
and, therefore, felt that they lacked sufficient 
knowledge to cast an informed vote. 

6) Approval and Order of Agenda*

The  following vote was made: 

Motion: “to postpone the  ‘Civic Center – Super Sub 
Cmte Briefing’ agenda item to a subsequent CoD 
meeting so that the Commissioner who proposed that 
agenda item (but is not present tonight to discuss) may 
participate, and to otherwise approve the agenda as 
drafted.” 
Made by: Commissioner Fischer. 
Seconded by: Commissioner Pugh. 

11



Internal 
Internal 

Ayes: unanimous. 
Nays: none. 
Motion passes.

12



Internal 
Internal 

7) Staff updates: (a) intro/contact info of new CoD 
secretary and (b) reminder about chat function 
when Commissioners meet via Zoom. 

 
B. ACTION ITEMS 

 

The public may speak about any agenda item, and 
members of the public will have an opportunity to 
speak prior to any voting regarding an agenda item. 
(Comments may be limited to 3 minutes per speaker) 

 
 
DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS: 

 

1. Introduction of new commissioners ( discussion) 
 

2. Nominations and vote for Chair and Vice Chair 
(action) 

 
No election for Vice-Chair was needed, and 
including this item in the agenda was an error.  
Re the election of a Chair, the following vote 
was made: 
 
Motion: “to postpone the election of Chair till 
next month.” 
Made by: Commissioner Fischer. 
Seconded by: Commissioner Pugh. 
Ayes: unanimous. 
Nays: none. 
Motion passes. 
 

13



Internal 
Internal 

 
3. Review Commission on Disability work Plan 

(discussion) Include work plan in packet 
 
H.W., the one public member in attendance, 
commented about the CoD’s Work Plan. 
 
Following some discussion among 
Commissioners of potential Work Plan goals, 
the following vote was made: 
 
Motion: “to make Work Plan development be 
a top priority at the next CoD meeting.” 
Made by: Commissioner Lewkowicz. 
Seconded by: Commissioner Sun. 
Ayes: unanimous. 
Nays: none. 
Motion passes. 
 

4. Open discussion on creating an effective, 
representative Commission on Disability with 
logistical practices and communication policies that 
comply with both the ADA and the Brown Act. 

 
Among Commissioners, there was a broad 
consensus that (a) it’s important to fill all nine CoD 
seats and that recruitment efforts on the part of all 
involved could help achieve that outcome sooner 
rather than later, (b) Brown Act requirements make 
it difficult for Commissioners to safely and 
comfortably participate remotely and that the 
Commission would like hybrid meetings to be 
permissible, as they were during the height of the 

14



Internal 
Internal 

pandemic, and (c) a venue close to Civic Center 
would be much preferable, for safety reasons and 
other reasons, to the current venue at Corporation 
Yard. 
 
The secretary promised to promptly check with the 
City Clerk’s office to see what might be possible re 
CoD moving to a meeting venue closer to Civic 
Center. 
 
 

5. Civic Center - Super Sub Cmte Briefing An overview 
of the design concept for Civic Center Park, the 
Veterans Memorial Building and the Maudelle Shirek 

15



Internal 
Internal 

Building (“Old City Hall”) was provided. A the final 
report will be headed to council in June 2023. ( see 
packet pdf of the project) informational/discussion 

 
 
The public may speak at the beginning of any item. 
(Comments may be limited to 3 minutes per speaker) 

 
C. Announcements 

 
None. 
 
 

D. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The following vote was made at 8:48pm: 
 
Motion: “to adjourn.” 
Made by: Commissioner Pugh. 
Seconded by: Commissioner Sun. 
Ayes: unanimous. 
Nays: none. 
Motion passes. 

 
 

Agenda Posted: (1) on the bulletin board at Old City 
Hall at 2134 MLK Jr. Way, (2) at 1326 Allston Way, 
Berkeley, CA 94702 (Willow Room at the Corporation 
Yard), (3) on the City of Berkeley website, and (4) the 
two addresses listed as remote sites toward the top of 
this agenda. 

 

16



Internal 
Internal 

 
* Indicates written material included in packet. 
** Indicates material to be delivered at meeting. 
*** Indicates material previously mailed. 
A complete agenda packet is available for public 
review on the web at: 
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/C 
ommissio 
ns Commission_on_Disability_Homepage.aspx 

17

https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Commission_on_Disability_Homepage.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Commission_on_Disability_Homepage.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Commission_on_Disability_Homepage.aspx


Internal 
Internal 

Available also at the main library, and Public Works, 

Engineering Division, 1947 Center Street, 4th Floor. 

 
ADA Disclaimer 

 “This meeting is being held in a wheelchair 
accessible location. To request a disability-related 
accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, 
including auxiliary aids or services, or alternative 
formats, please contact the Disability Services 
specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at 
least 72 hours before the meeting commences. 
Please refrain from wearing scented products to 
this meeting. 

Communications Disclaimer 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or 
committees are public record and will become part of 
the City’s electronic records, which are accessible 
through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail 
addresses, names, addresses, and other contact 
information are not required, but if included in any 
communication to a City board, commission or 
committee, will become part of the public record. If 
you do not want your e-mail address or any other 
contact information to be made public, you may 
deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in 

18



Internal 
Internal 

person to the secretary of the relevant board, 
commission or committee. 
If you do not want your contact information included 
in the public record, please do not include that 
information in your communication. 

 
Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, 
commission or committee for further information. 

 
Commission Secretary: Thomas Gregory, ADA 
Program Coordinator, 1947 Center St., 4th Floor, 
Berkeley, CA, 94704, Telephone (510) 981-6418, Fax: 
(510) 981-7060 TDD: (510) 981-6347. 
Email: tgregory@cityofberkeley.info 
Email: ada@cityofberkeley.info 

19

mailto:tgregory@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:ada@cityofberkeley.info


�����������������	
���� ��������������������������
��������������  ����	
����	���	�!����
�����"��#��������$���������� �����������������	
����%$
�����!�
�����#	�������	���#	��&������������������������	
�����%$
'���� �����������������	
���������	��(�	������)���*�+��,�-�	�������.������#�������������������	
���������$
������/��#��"���	���	������)���*�+��,�-�	�0�.������%��.������������%�������%1233455426�26�745894:4;<�=�>45?8:�@A8B�CDCC�E66F8:�G2BHI:86JK1LMN7�O868PA3A6;�86Q�RA?2SAB<��	�,�!�T���&������	�!���&	����"�����#����T�!)�U�&	�!����������$!��/�
$������������!����!��&��&������	���#�	��#���&	����"���&��&���!��	
�������V������W$������"���#�	��#��	��&��T�!���V�!���$&���������!��	
������$&&�����X�0/0���!$�����������	���
$���������&��T�!��/������	��&��!$����	�!����T����YV������	������Z��,��������!�����[��#����/)����!��	
��������!$�����&���)��T�!����&���	�����V�	�!���!$�������������
$!/����"������T����	�!���"�	���$��$�����&��T�������X�0/0���!�[	�,���&	����""����Y0���/	/������T	������!�&	�����������W$����&������	������	�!�/	�#�������$����"��!
	�,0����$����W$��	
��	�!�	������
����&&���$����������&	�����&	�����������""������&��/�	����������/��	�!�����	��T��0CKN3IB2SAQ�\B865I2B;8;426�86Q�O294:4;<������$���""��������	��!�����#��]�	T�/	
���������̂�"�	��[��,�"����	"���	������
��&�!�����	��&	�#[	��	�!���#�����	��&���	�������"�	���$��$��������$!��/�	&&��&��	����������	�$��������!���/��!���	��&���	����������!���0���������$���$��T���	��	������
������"����T	���	&&���	�������,���,�����!�)�#	���/����T��������	��&���	��������[��,����&	����X����Y��
�,���	�!����������X����$!��/��#	��!���
����Y��	�!�]����/��/����#����/̂��$�#	��	$���	��!�T�#������X��_�Y0��!!�����&$
������	��&���	��������������	�!��	"�������$!��/�
$!/����	�!���
�	�!��	"������	��!�����#����T�!)�U�&	�!����0����$���W$��	
���	�!�	������
����&&���$����������&	�����&	�����������""������&��/�	����������/�	�!������	��T��0K̀aF9:4?�N6IF;�86Q�aF9:4?�LF;BA8?b�c2B�1L7��&�����������$���	������#	������[��#���#������������������V�&$��$��]�����)����
���#�&̂�[��#���#����������������[#�����������
������W$�������
��	&&�����!�����#���������������[��#�T	�	�����V�&�������d��������������[#������T��	/��	""������e�����T�	�%�������Z��,��������Ufg�f�h������Xi��Y�Ue�)g����h������Xi��Y�Ue�)jU�*�h��	k��Xi��Y�Ue�)g�UU�)�	�����	�	/��l����"Z��,���0��"��+�
������#��&�mm[[[0����"Z��,���0��"�m�	�	/��

nopq�r�st�u vw

xyz{�|}~

20



�����������������	
��������������������	� ��������������������� ��
!��""#�����

�	$!��

%!�%�!�&��'�(��	
�����!��)!*$*�%!	 !�+�,-��� !#�.!���&	��!#�%�	����$#�'��!�!���!��#�!� */*��	��!�	&	�!�!����0�����&��'����'!�(��	
����� ���-����	�(��!�!1	�����	�!'��(!���)!*$*��!�$'
��'��(�	�(�
-���!���	��� �	�����/�	�(���1��!� ���-�����!�
!���	�(���	�!'��(!������	��!�(������!!���$�*��-��!	 '��'�-�(��� �-(!��%%���-����!��0��� ���-�����!�
!�������!2-!���	  !���
�������(�0� 	�����#��� �-(��$�0����!���!��!!���$��)!*$*� 	%������$����3���/*��!1!��%�	� ������!���%�� !���	�(����!0�	�!�0��� ���-����!�$	$!�!��*����-�!�!2-��	
�!�	�(�	  !���
�!��%%���-����!�����%	��� �%	�!���� ���!00����#�%��$�	��#��!!���$��	�(������	��1!�*4567898:;:7<�97=�>=?@ABCD�EBF:�GBC�H@<D�ICBJ:AA:A�� �!	�!��-��!	 '�	�(��!2-!����0������!��%�!�!��	������	�(���0���	�����0���������0�K!��!�!���	00�	�(���'!���!�!1	����00� �	���)!*$*�	���'!� �-�������!$���	���!1!��/*�L����.!��'!������������������	
�����	��	�%-
�� �0��-��	�(��1!���$'��
�(#�!�%! �	�������'!�0	 !��0�-�%�! !(!��!(� '	��!�$!��(-���$��'!� �����-��$���1�(�"M�%	�(!�� �	�(��! �1!���'!�!0���*�L����.!�����	��	��	(1�����+����������$�
�(������ �!	�!�	  !���
�����+�	  �-��	
�������� ���!00�����	�(���'!��	�!	���0���0�-!� !*��	���!��&��'���'!�� ����������N�	(1� 	�!�0����!&��-
� ������!!��	�(� ������!�
!��'�%�0����!�!1	���$�	��*�����������!��� ���������	 ��1!��	�(��!$-�	���!�$	$!�&��'�	%%������$���-� ����!�
!��*����-�!��'	�������!1�!&� ���%��� �!�����	1��(�(��! ��(! �������
���-� ��#������	�	$!�#�	�(���'!�� ���!�����!��&��'�-��(��	
�������%-�*����-�!�!2-��	
�!�	�(�	  !���
�!��%%���-����!�����%	��� �%	�!���� ���!00����#�%��$�	��#��!!���$��	�(������	��1!�*O5>JJ:AA@PF:�97=�>GGBC=9PF:�QBRA@78�S%���!��'!�!S%	������	�(���%��1!(�	1	��	
������0�	  !���
�!�'�-���$�0���%!�%�!�&��'�(��	
�����!�#��� �-(��$�$���$�
!��(�
	�!���!�����	  !����!2-��!�!��������!&� �����- �����)!*$*�	((��$�	-���	�� �(�����%!�!��#�-�����&��'����������'�&!���	�(���'!��-��1!��	��	  !���0!	�-�!�#�!� */*��! �$��.!�	����!�����&(�&������!&� �����- �����	�(��� �!	�!�!00�����	��!� �-�	$��$�	  !���
������!���0�����0�!S�����$�
-��(��$�#�&'!�'!�����$�!�0	����'��!������-����-����	%	���!���T ��(�����-��*��((�!���	00��(	
�����	��	��!�0	 ����0���'�-���$#�!�%! �	���$�1!���'!�(�� ���! ��
!�&!!��	00��(	
�����	�(�	  !���
�����)$�1!���!&!��
-��(��$��	�!����!�	  !���
�!�
-��	�����!�(����'	1!�'�$'!���!���/*��	���!��&��'��!����� ���-����	�(�	(1� 	�!��0����-�-	��	�!	���0����!�!��*���-�!�!2-��	
�!�	�(�	  !���
�!��%%���-����!�����%	��� �%	�!���� ���!00����#�%��$�	��#��!!���$��	�(������	��1!�*U5QB;:F:AA�V:BVF:�W@<X�Y@A9P@F@<@:AZ-%%����K!��!�![��%�%-�	������0�'��!�!����!��(!����&��'�(��	
�����!�*�����	
��	�!�&��'��� 	���!�1� !�%��1�(!������	((�!���(��	
������!�	�!(��!!(�#��- '�	��	  !������'!	��' 	�!�����!%	�����0��!(� 	��!2-�%�!���)&'!!� '	���#�� ���!��#�&	��!��#�!� */*��((�!������!�����-!�#��- '�	��%	�(!�� ��	0!�#�!S��!�!�'!	��!1!����	�(�	���2-	����)�� �-(��$�&��(0��!�����!/*��  !������!�! ��� ���	�(�!�!�$��!��-� !�*��(1� 	�!�0���%!��	�!���	  !���
�!�'�-���$#��� �-(��$� �!	��1!����-������)!*$*�����'��!�/*����-�!�!2-��	
�!�	�(�	  !���
�!��%%���-����!�����%	��� �%	�!���� ���!00����#�%��$�	��#��!!���$��	�(������	��1!�*

\]̂ _�̀�ab�c

defg�hij

21



�����������������	
��������������������	� ��������������������� ��
!��""#�����

�	$!��

%&'()*+),-./012324)*�5*)63*)7,)22�! !�8!���9���	�����	�:���$���$�;<:	�!�#�<	��� �<	�!�	�:��	�!��! ���!�:	������	��	<<��<��	�!�	
�;��=!��!�!>��=������	�:������<��$�	��?��::�!����� �!	���$�9�!@;!� ��9��!:���	$��	����$�!8!���#�A��:9��!�:	�$!�#��;
�� �B	9!����A!��BC;��99�#�<����	���@;	����:	�#�	�:�!D��!�!�C!	��8!���?��	���	����8!���$C��	�:�!99�����	��;�:�!	��C@;	�!��	9!�?��� �!	�!���	����$��<<���;����!��9���:��	
�����	A	�!�!���E��	�	$!�!��#��� �;:��$���B����	����$�?��:8!����!�:��	��!���!��;� !��9��������F!?$?���9���	����#�
	 �;<��;<<��!�#���$	��G	������	�:�:!��$�	�!:�	  !���
�!��C!��!��H#��� �;:��$��������9���	��!:���	99�	�:�8��;��!!��?����;�!�!@;��	
�!�	�:�	  !���
�!��<<���;����!�����<	��� �<	�!���� ���!99����#�<��$�	��#��!!���$��	�:������	��8!�?I&J4K7),4�L1M)�3,7�0123N1O14.�PQ3*),)22��<��8!� ���;�� 	�����	�:� ���	
��	�����A��C�=!��!�!>���	����;:!����A��C�:��	
�����!�#�<��8�:��$� ���;����!�$	$!�!���	�:��!	:!��C�<��<<���;����!��	�:��;<<�����9�����:!<!�:!�����8��$?��::�!���	���<�<;�	�������� �;:��$���;:!����A��C�:��	
�����!�����!�!�!��	���C��;$C�C�$C�� C���#�=!��!�!���������!$!#�R��=!��!�!#�	�:�<��8	�!�!�����!�?��:8� 	�!�9��� ����;<<���!:��!�8� !��	�:��!��;� !��9����;�C#��;�$�	:;����	�:���C!����;:!����AS�:��	
�����!�?��� �!	�!�	99��:	
������9�	�:�	  !������!:; 	����#���	����$#��! �!	�����	�:���9!��!��;� !��F!?$?�C�;���$�	�:���	��<���	����H�9�����;:!���?����;�!�!@;��	
�!�	�:�	  !���
�!��<<���;����!�����<	��� �<	�!���� ���!99����#�<��$�	��#��!!���$��	�:������	��8!�?T&P--)221N1O14.�1,�U14.�'V),42W�X))41,+2W�UY((K,1-341Y,2�Z�[,MY*(341Y,�\)-],YOY+.�����A��C� �����	99#� ����������#�	�:���C!���!�!8	���<	���!������$;	�	��!!��� �;�����	�:�	  !���
������9�!8!���#��!!���$��	�:� ���;�� 	�����?�̂;	�	��!!�	  !�������;���<�!��!:�	#��	���$������	  �;���	�:�8!������9�:��	
�����!��	�:��C!��8!�	���:�$��	��:�8�:!�F�?!?�:��<��<������	�!�	  !��������9���	������! C����$�	�:��!�	�!:��!�8� !�H_��C��� 	���� �;:!�<����!:�F<	<!�H� ���;�� 	������	�:���9���	�������!��#�	��A!���	���C��!���!������	  !���
�!�F!?$?�=�	���!�����	�$!�<����H�9���	�?����;�!��C	��	����!!���$��	�:�!8!����	�!�	  !���
�!��C��;$C��C!����!��!��9����C��!�AC�� 	�����	��!�:_��C������!�<! �	�����<���	��� ����:!���$�C!	��C�	�:�A!���!��������$C���9��C!���8�:�"̀�<	�:!�� �	�:�������$���$�!99! ��?���<C	��G!�<�	����	�$;	$!�	�:��;���<�!��!:�	���� ����!��;� !��	�:������	��8!������!	 C��C!�A�:!���	;:�!� !�<����
�!?�R����G!�9�!!��!:�	�F�?!?� ���A!
���!�#��!A�<	<!��#��B��#�=!��!�!��a#��� �	���!:�	#�!� ?H�	�:�<	���!��C�<��F!?$?�A��C����<��9���#� ���;������$	��G	�����#�	�:�9	��C�
	�!:���$	��G	�����H����!�$	$!�	���	��<!�<�!�	��<����
�!?����;�!�!@;��	
�!�	�:�	  !���
�!��<<���;����!�����<	��� �<	�!���� ���!99����#�<��$�	��#��!!���$��	�:������	��8!�?�C!������������������	
�������� 	��b!	�������������������	���;<<������C!�B��	�!$� ���	��$�	����� C	�<����	�:�:!������	�!��� �	��	�:��	 �	��!@;��?

cdef�g�hi�j

klmn�opq

22



�����������������	
��������������������	� ��������������������� ��
!��""#�����

�	$!�%

&��'(��)���*!��������	��+	��	,,��-!.�
��*!����������������/$/����#������01��!2��!�2���!!�	�#��	��*3���!�2����!3��
��	��2����!3��
�!��2�4��$!�3�������54! ��.2���!!�	�5�	��*6��1�����������4)4�����&����7�������������������4�*!�!�	�!�����.!���8�	
�!�!�-�����!��	��!88! ��#� ���	�!���,	 ��#�����/��	��	
������,,���/����!��	��� �	�!.�+��*��*!��/
9! ���8��*����!,���3��44�&����)�)���������)����+�3��4����������4������44�&����)�)���������)����+�3�����������4����.�!+�&��:�	#��!,/�����! �����8��/
�� ������#�0;"�6�<="�>�<>

?@AB�C�DE�C

FGHI�JKL

23



Internal 

2023 Log of Access-related Complaints Received by CoB 
 
Subject matter key: 
1 = built environment (facilities and their adjacent paths of 
travel) 
2 = built environment (pedestrian rights of way) 
3 = digital content 
4 = effective communications/signage 
5 = programs, services, and activities 

Date Complaint 
Lodged 

Lack of Access 
Pertaining To 

Date the City felt 
a solution was 
implemented 

1/24/23 5 1/27/23 
1/30/23 1 3/14/23 
2/7/23 2 2/24/23 
2/16/23 5 2/20/23 
5/24/23 1 5/30/23 
6/8/23 3 not yet 
6/8/23 3 6/14/23 
6/8/23 3 6/14/23 
6/16/23 5 6/21/23 
6/23/23 5 not yet 

 
The above list does not reflect accommodation requests 
that were promptly approved and met to the requester’s 
satisfaction. 

24



    
California Office 

2001 Center Street, 3rd Floor 
Berkeley, CA  94704-1204 

Tel: (510) 665-8644 
Fax: (510) 665-8511 
www.dralegal.org  

New York Office 
655 Third Avenue, 14th Floor 

New York, NY 10017-5621 
Tel: (212) 644-8644 

Fax: (212) 644-8636 
www.dralegal.org  

 
 

 

 

 
June 23, 2023 
 
Farimah Brown 
Berkeley City Attorney 
fbrown@cityofberkeley.info 
 
Thomas Gregory 
ADA Program Coordinator 
TGregory@berkeleyca.gov 

Re: Remote Commission Meeting Attendance 

Dear Ms. Brown and Mr. Gregory, 

Disability Rights Advocates (DRA) represents three members of the Berkeley 
Commission on Disability: Kathi Pugh, Rena Fischer, and Helen Walsh. We write 
regarding their requests for reasonable accommodations under the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) in order to participate in Commission meetings.  

All three Commission members have disabilities that require they attend all or some 
Commission meetings remotely. They have requested reasonable accommodations 
through the City’s process and have been informed that, in order to be granted remote 
attendance as an accommodation for their disabilities, they must have their home 
addresses posted publicly as teleconference locations and open up their homes to any 
member of the public who wishes to enter and attend the meeting there. This 
interpretation of the City’s obligations misinterprets the law1 and fails to accommodate 
Ms. Pugh, Ms. Fischer, and Ms. Walsh as required by the ADA. Additionally, these 
requirements are dangerous. One Commission member is immunocompromised and 
needs remote attendance in part to limit her exposure to others. Requiring her to allow 
the public into her home places her in the exact danger she seeks to avoid, exposing 
her to unpredictable and unknown additional risk of infection. Another Commission 
member at times must attend Commission meetings remotely from bed—requiring she 
allow people she does not know into her home during these evening Commission 
meetings is both dangerous and intrusive and requires an invasion of her privacy not 
required of non-disabled Commission members. Opening Commission members’ 
homes to the public may be dangerous for the public as well, as private homes may not 
be safe or accessible to members of the public with disabilities in the same way a public 
City meeting location is. 

 
1 We refer the City to the San Francisco City Attorney’s January 10, 2023 opinion on this same topic: 
www.sfcityattorney.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Legal-Rules-Governing-Remote-Participation-by-
Members-of-Policy-Bodies-in-Meetings-Beginning-March-1-2023.pdf  

Via Email Only 
 

25

mailto:fbrown@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:TGregory@berkeleyca.gov
http://www.sfcityattorney.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Legal-Rules-Governing-Remote-Participation-by-Members-of-Policy-Bodies-in-Meetings-Beginning-March-1-2023.pdf
http://www.sfcityattorney.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/01/Legal-Rules-Governing-Remote-Participation-by-Members-of-Policy-Bodies-in-Meetings-Beginning-March-1-2023.pdf


 
Page 2 

Title II of the ADA provides that "[n]o qualified individual with a disability shall, by reason 
of such disability, be excluded from participation in or be denied the benefits of the 
services, programs, or activities of a public entity, or be subjected to discrimination by 
any such entity." 42 U.S.C. § 12132. Courts and administrative authorities typically treat 
membership on public bodies as covered by Title II. Disqualifying a person from 
attending and participating in meetings of a City advisory body because their disability 
precludes them from attending meetings in person falls within Title II.   

The key question here under Title II is whether remote attendance at Commission 
meetings by a disabled member who cannot attend the meeting in person because of 
their disability is a reasonable accommodation that would not fundamentally alter the 
member's role or constitute an undue burden. The answer here is unequivocally yes. 
Yet the City has improperly imposed unnecessary additional and burdensome, unsafe 
conditions on this accommodation.  

Remote attendance of Commission meetings as a reasonable accommodation for a 
disability stems from federal law and is an entirely separate process from that 
contemplated by the teleconferencing allowances in both the Brown Act and AB2449. If 
a Commission member has a disability subject to a reasonable accommodation and as 
a result cannot attend meetings in person, City and state restrictions on attendance via 
teleconferencing must give way to the City's duty under federal law to reasonably 
accommodate the disabled member. The Brown Act’s teleconferencing requirements, 
including public posting and public access to the remote location, do not apply. 
Additionally, it is instructive here that even AB2449 does not require location disclosure 
when remote attendance for a qualified just cause or emergency reason is granted.   

Ms. Pugh, Ms. Fischer, Ms. Walsh, and any other City body members who may be 
granted remote attendance as an accommodation must be permitted to participate in 
meetings without being subject to the teleconferencing requirements of the Brown Act, 
including that they post their home addresses publicly and permit members of the public 
to attend the meetings with them from inside their homes. As discussed above, for at 
least one Commission member, this requirement in fact serves to render her offer of 
accommodation ineffective, as one purpose of her accommodation is to limit her 
exposure to the public.  

Please contact us within ten days to discuss the City’s obligations to provide these 
necessary accommodations for Commission members with disabilities.  

Sincerely,  

 
Amelia Evard 
Wolinsky Fellowship Attorney 
  

 

26



Internal 

working and in use APS Audible and vibrotactile pedestrian signals 
city of Berkeley  
 
 

GT 
Gregory, Thomas 
Wed 6/28/2023 11:41 AM 
Will do. Best, Thomas Gregory / ADA Program Coordinator City of Berkeley, Public Works Department 1947 Center 
Street, 4th Floor Berkeley, CA 94704 (510) 981-6418 

HW 
Helen Walsh <branach@comcast.net> 

� 
 
 
 
 

To: 
• Gregory, Thomas 

Cc: 
• Brozyna, Andrew; 
• Campos, Guillermo; 
• Garland, Liam 

Wed 6/28/2023 11:22 AM 
Please add this email to the packet.  
It relates to ADA complaints.  
Thank you Helen  
 
iSent from the Event Horizon 
 
 
Begin forwarded message: 
 

From: "Brozyna, Andrew" <ABrozyna@cityofberkeley.info> 
Date: May 4, 2023 at 3:03:38 PM PDT 
To: Helen Walsh <Branach@comcast.net> 
Cc: "Campos, Guillermo" <GCampos@cityofberkeley.info> 
Subject: RE: working and in use APS Audible and vibrotactile pedestrian signals city of 
Berkeley 
 
 
Hi Helen, 
  
Here are the locations: 

27



Internal 

  
Intersection of Shattuck and Blake, BERKELEY, CA, Berkeley, CA, United States 
Intersection of Shattuck and University, BERKELEY,, Berkeley, CA, United States 
Intersection of Adeline and Ashby, BERKELEY, CA, Berkeley, CA, United States 
  
Thank you, 
  
Andrew 

From: Helen Walsh <branach@comcast.net> 
Sent: Thursday, May 04, 2023 10:13 AM 
To: Brozyna, Andrew <ABrozyna@cityofberkeley.info> 
Cc: Campos, Guillermo <GCampos@cityofberkeley.info> 
Subject: Re: working and in use APS Audible and vibrotactile pedestrian signals city of Berkeley 
  
Can I have the location of the 3 signals that have service request work orders for audible indicators 
repairs. Thanks!   
Helen Walsh  
  
iSent from the Event Horizon 
  
 
 
On Apr 27, 2023, at 10:11 AM, Brozyna, Andrew <ABrozyna@cityofberkeley.info> wrote: 

 

From: Brown, Joy 
Sent: Wednesday, April 19, 2023 9:58 AM 
To: Brozyna, Andrew <ABrozyna@cityofberkeley.info>; Mostowfi, Hamid 
<HMostowfi@cityofberkeley.info> 
Cc: Tim Mahoney <tmahoney@dac-corp.com>; Jennie Grover <jgrover@dac-corp.com>; Baker, Aaron 
<ABaker@cityofberkeley.info>; Salkowitz, Thomas <TSalkowitz@cityofberkeley.info> 
Subject: RE: working and in use APS Audible and vibrotactile pedestrian signals city of Berkeley 
  
Hi Andrew, 
  
There are three active work orders based on service requests for issues with the audible 
indicators. 
  
Thanks. 
Joy 

From: Brozyna, Andrew 
Sent: Wednesday, April 19, 2023 9:45 AM 
To: Brown, Joy <EJBrown@cityofberkeley.info>; Mostowfi, Hamid <HMostowfi@cityofberkeley.info> 
Cc: Tim Mahoney <tmahoney@dac-corp.com>; Jennie Grover <jgrover@dac-corp.com>; Baker, Aaron 
<ABaker@cityofberkeley.info> 
Subject: RE: working and in use APS Audible and vibrotactile pedestrian signals city of Berkeley 
  

28

mailto:ABrozyna@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:ABrozyna@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:HMostowfi@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:tmahoney@dac-corp.com
mailto:jgrover@dac-corp.com
mailto:ABaker@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:TSalkowitz@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:EJBrown@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:HMostowfi@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:tmahoney@dac-corp.com
mailto:jgrover@dac-corp.com
mailto:ABaker@cityofberkeley.info


Internal 

Thanks, Joy.  
  
Any idea how many of those are presently working?  
  
Thanks! 
  
Andrew 

From: Brown, Joy 
Sent: Wednesday, April 19, 2023 7:40 AM 
To: Mostowfi, Hamid <HMostowfi@cityofberkeley.info>; Brozyna, Andrew 
<ABrozyna@cityofberkeley.info> 
Cc: Tim Mahoney <tmahoney@dac-corp.com>; Jennie Grover <jgrover@dac-corp.com>; Baker, Aaron 
<ABaker@cityofberkeley.info> 
Subject: RE: working and in use APS Audible and vibrotactile pedestrian signals city of Berkeley 
  
Hi Andrew, 
  
Tom Salkowitz confirmed we have 50 locations. 
 
Thanks, 
Joy Brown 
Operations Manager 
Public Works 
City of Berkeley 
510-981-6629 

From: Mostowfi, Hamid 
Sent: Tuesday, April 18, 2023 9:38 AM 
To: Brozyna, Andrew <ABrozyna@cityofberkeley.info>; Brown, Joy <EJBrown@cityofberkeley.info> 
Cc: Tim Mahoney <tmahoney@dac-corp.com>; Jennie Grover <jgrover@dac-corp.com> 
Subject: RE: working and in use APS Audible and vibrotactile pedestrian signals city of Berkeley 
  
Andrew, 
  
We keep an inventory of the traffic signal equipment, I have asked Tommy Salkowitz to take a 
look at it to determine if the info can be provided without going to every signal location. 
  
Thanks, 
Hamid 

From: Brozyna, Andrew 
Sent: Tuesday, April 18, 2023 8:51 AM 
To: Mostowfi, Hamid <HMostowfi@cityofberkeley.info>; Brown, Joy <EJBrown@cityofberkeley.info> 
Cc: Tim Mahoney <tmahoney@dac-corp.com>; Jennie Grover <jgrover@dac-corp.com> 
Subject: Fw: working and in use APS Audible and vibrotactile pedestrian signals city of Berkeley 
  
Hi Joy and Hamid, 
  

29

mailto:HMostowfi@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:ABrozyna@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:tmahoney@dac-corp.com
mailto:jgrover@dac-corp.com
mailto:ABaker@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:ABrozyna@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:EJBrown@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:tmahoney@dac-corp.com
mailto:jgrover@dac-corp.com
mailto:HMostowfi@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:EJBrown@cityofberkeley.info
mailto:tmahoney@dac-corp.com
mailto:jgrover@dac-corp.com


Internal 

Wasn't sure who to send this to for help on answering Vice Chair Walsh's question below 
(Helen Walsh is with he Commission on Disability).   
  
Thank you! 
  
Andrew  
From: Helen Walsh <branach@comcast.net> 
Sent: Monday, April 17, 2023 3:50 PM 
To: Brozyna, Andrew <ABrozyna@cityofberkeley.info> 
Subject: working and in use APS Audible and vibrotactile pedestrian signals city of Berkeley 
  
WARNING: This is not a City of Berkeley email. Do not click links or attachments unless you trust the 
sender and know the content is safe. 
 
Dear Andrew Brozyna, 
How many (APS) audible and Vibrotactile  pedestrian signals presently are working and in use the city of 
city of Berkeley? 
Thank you Helen Walsh 
 
iSent from the Event Horizon 

 

30

mailto:branach@comcast.net
mailto:ABrozyna@cityofberkeley.info


Internal 

Disability (placard) parking Key pass, disability request blue zone, 
total on street disability ( blue zones ) and blue zone van ( blue zone 
parking )and total disability blue zone and van blue zone city 
garage parking zones 
 
 

GT 
Gregory, Thomas 
Wed 6/28/2023 11:42 AM 
Will do. Best, Thomas Gregory / ADA Program Coordinator City of Berkeley, Public Works Department 1947 Center 
Street, 4th Floor Berkeley, CA 94704 (510) 981-6418 

HW 
Helen Walsh <branach@comcast.net> 

� 
 
 
 
 

To: 
• Gregory, Thomas 

Cc: 
• Brozyna, Andrew; 
• Campos, Guillermo; 
• Garland, Liam 

Wed 6/28/2023 11:27 AM 
Thomas, 
Please add this to the packet as it pertains to follow up I did regarding complaints regarding 
accessible parking.  
Thanks Helen Walsh  
 
iSent from the Event Horizon 
 
 
Begin forwarded message: 
 

From: "Hansen, Gordon" <GHansen@cityofberkeley.info> 
Date: May 10, 2023 at 4:00:23 PM PDT 
To: Helen Walsh <Branach@comcast.net> 
Subject: RE: Disability (placard) parking Key pass, disability request blue zone, total on 
street disability ( blue zones ) and blue zone van ( blue zone parking )and total disability 
blue zone and van blue zone city garage parking zones 
 

31



Internal

Hi Helen, 

Happy to help! 
I do not believe van accessible spaces have specifically been accounted for. 

Take care, 
Gordon 

--------------------- 
Gordon Hansen (he/him) 
Acting Principal Transportation Planner 
City of Berkeley
1947 Center Street, 4th Floor
Berkeley, CA 94704
510-981-7064

From: Helen Walsh <branach@comcast.net> 
Sent: Friday, May 05, 2023 5:23 PM 
To: Hansen, Gordon <GHansen@cityofberkeley.info> 
Subject: Re: Disability (placard) parking Key pass, disability request blue zone, total on street disability ( 
blue zones ) and blue zone van ( blue zone parking )and total disability blue zone and van blue zone city 
garage parking zones 

WARNING: This is not a City of Berkeley email. Do not click links or attachments unless you trust the sender 
and know the content is safe. 

Thank you Gordon! 
Does another department have the street parking Van Accessibility blue zones data? 
or is it that it has not been accounted for?  
Helen Walsh  

iSent from the Event Horizon 

On May 5, 2023, at 3:22 PM, Hansen, Gordon <GHansen@cityofberkeley.info> wrote: 

Hi Helen, 

Please see below for a summary of available data pursuant to your requests. 

The ADA Parking Garage program resets its permit issuance records every other year as new CA placards 
are issued (odd number years). Since the start of the program in 2015, over 700+ card key passes have 
been issued to participants. 

1. Total of Disability (placard) Key pass given out to residence who applied for the free parking program
in Berkeley city garages:

1. 83 card keys currently on file for Garages

32

mailto:GHansen@cityofberkeley.info


Internal

2. Total of Disability (placard) Key pass given out to visitors who applied for the free parking program in
Berkeley city garages:

2. 248 card keys currently on file for Garages

3. Total of Disability blue zones and van blue zones in all the city of Berkeley parking garages:
3. The total blue zones in the City’s (3) garages: 25 spaces
4. The total van accessibility stalls in the City’s (3) garages: 6 spaces

4. Disability request blue zone, total on residential street:
5. We have (96) spaces installed in total

5. Total of the current disability (blue zones) street parking in the city of Berkeley:
6. Approximately 468 spaces (inclusive of residential blue zones and UC Berkeley

blue zones)

6. Total Disability blue zone van (blue zone) street parking in the city of Berkeley:
7. Unfortunately, we do not have this data.

Take care, 
Gordon 

--------------------- 
Gordon Hansen (he/him) 
Acting Principal Transportation Planner 
City of Berkeley
1947 Center Street, 4th Floor
Berkeley, CA 94704
510-981-7064

33


	agenda - July2023 CoD Meeting
	ADA Disclaimer
	Communications Disclaimer

	DRAFT Minutes - 7June2023 CoD
	A. PRELIMINARY BUSINESS
	B. ACTION ITEMS
	DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS:
	D. ADJOURNMENT:
	The following vote was made at 8:48pm:
	Motion: “to adjourn.”
	Made by: Commissioner Pugh.
	Seconded by: Commissioner Sun.
	Ayes: unanimous.
	Nays: none.
	Motion passes.
	(510) 981-7060 TDD: (510) 981-6347.

	Commission on Disability FY 2022-2023 Work Plan
	2023 Log of Access Complaints
	DRA - 2023-06-23_Letter_re_Berkeley_Meetings
	Re: Remote Commission Meeting Attendance

	email thread re working and in use APS Audible and vibrotactile pedestrian signals city of Berkeley
	email thread re accessible parking



